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Chair & Chief Executive Report 
 
Welcome to our annual report and financial statements for 2015-16. 
 
In July 2015, we published our Corporate Plan 2015-2020 – our first Corporate Plan to span five years – which reaffirmed our 
commitment to the creation of a strong, vibrant and diverse economy. 
 
Our achievements throughout the first year of the Plan, and our continued collaboration with partners as laid out in this report; 
provide a strong platform for achieving our ambitions for 2020. 
 
By leading on skills planning and development, supporting individuals to put skills to work and advocating the creation of fairer 
workplaces, we have this year continued to deliver the very best outcomes for Scotland’s people, businesses and the economy. 
 
Throughout 2015-16 we have not only made further progress in improving skills support for employers, but have also worked closely 
with stakeholders to stimulate strong relationships between businesses and industry, as well as the providers of education and training, 
so that Scotland’s economy is fuelled by a skilled workforce both now and in the future. 
 
We have continued to develop intelligence and demand for skills at a local and sector level, through the development of further Skills 
Investment Plans and Regional Skills Assessments – intelligence which is used to shape our skills investments and those of our 
partners. 
 
In direct response to such skills intelligence we have, for example, enhanced our current apprenticeship family and created new work-
based learning pathways, as well as launching a new web service, Digital World, to encourage individuals to explore exciting careers in 
ICT Digital to address an anticipated future skills shortage in this sector. 
 
Our Employer Services Team and employer web service, Our Skillsforce, have continued a help employers grow and develop their 
businesses through investment in skills. And we’ve worked with partners, such as Investors in People, to deliver more intensive one-to-
one business support to employers who need it through Skills for Growth. 
 
In order to help create future generations of confident, resilient individuals who know their strengths and are able to take advantage of 
the opportunities available to them, our Career Information, Advice and Guidance Service has continued to help young people build 
career management skills through My World of Work, individual and group sessions and targeted, intensive support for those who 
need it most. 
 
We have also been working very closely with a number of schools to scope out what earlier intervention might look like, allowing us to 
reach young people at important stages starting in P7 from August 2016. 
 
None of these achievements would be possible were it not for the dedication and enthusiasm of our staff and we must thank them for 
their continued commitment to delivering the best for Scotland. 
 
In the years to come, we will continue to put our customers at the very heart of everything we do and will strive to continually improve 
our service both now and in the future. 
 
 
 
John F McClelland CBE, Chairman 
 
Damien Yeates, Chief Executive  
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016  
 
Introduction 
 
A non-departmental body of the Scottish Government, Skills Development Scotland is the national skills body committed to driving 
forward sustainable economic growth by supporting people and businesses to develop and apply their skills.   
 
We work with partners at national, regional and local levels to create a Scotland where: 

• employers are able to recruit the right people, with the right skills, at the right time; 
• employers have high performing, highly productive, fair and equal workplaces; 
• people have the right skills and confidence to secure good work and progress in their careers; and 
• there is greater equality of opportunity for all. 

 
We aim to achieve this by delivering services for individuals and employers that help them to achieve their full potential.  By building 
strong partnerships with stakeholders such as providers, funders and influencers within education and training, we drive a focus on 
delivering the programmes that will make a real difference to Scotland’s people, businesses and ultimately its economy.  Investment in 
the right skills, at the right time and in the right place is at the heart of our approach to supporting individual achievement, as well as 
business and economic growth and a fairer Scotland. 
 
Together with partners, we drive skills planning and development. By placing an increasing emphasis on the importance of work based 
learning, our approach aims to improve the response of education and training to the needs of industry and ensure people have the 
best possible chance of succeeding in the world of work. 

 
For more information visit our website www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk. 
 
Performance Overview 
 
Our Operating Plan 2015-16 set out what we planned to achieve during the first year of our new five year Corporate Plan 2015-2020.  
An overview of progress towards our strategic goals during 2015-16 is provided below.  
 
Our main responsibilities are articulated in the Letter of Guidance received from Roseanna Cunningham, Scottish Government 
Cabinet Secretary for Fair Work, Training and Skills, dated 23 June 2015. This required us to maximise contribution to the Scottish 
Government’s Economic Strategy and high level targets for Growth, Productivity, Participation, Solidarity and Cohesion. It also 
required alignment of our operating activities with National Outcomes and prioritised areas of operation where links to key indicators 
would be demonstrated across our engagement with individuals, employers and partners. 
 
Making Skills Work for Employers 
 
At the heart of our approach to making skills work for employers is our drive to align supply and demand, working to ensure skills and 
ambitions of the workforce meet the needs of Scotland’s industries and economy.  In 2015-16 we continued to develop our approach 
to building the skills intelligence base in Scotland, which underpins this progressive alignment.  
 
In response to partners, we refreshed and improved our Regional Skills Assessments (RSAs) throughout 2015-16.  This refresh not 
only updated and expanded the available information, but also allowed us to present it at Regional, Local Authority and City Deal Area 
level.  As a result, this skills intelligence is now much more accessible and presented in a user-friendly way, meaning our skills partners 
throughout Scotland are equipped and empowered to make informed decisions.  
 
Building on the success of our Highlands and Islands Skills Investment Plan (SIP), we also developed an approach to producing 
Regional Skills Investment Plans (RSIPs).  Initially piloted in the Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire area, this approach aimed to 
support a targeted and evidence-based response to the challenging and changing skills needs in that region.  Looking ahead, this 
approach will facilitate greater understanding, helping regions to articulate and respond to their local skills needs. 
 
Throughout 2015-16, we continued to focus on defining the skills needs and development opportunities across Scotland’s key sectors, 
with the publication of the very first Creative Industries SIP and the refresh of the Food & Drink, Tourism and Financial and Business 
Services SIPs.  
 
Activity this year has demonstrated the importance of skills intelligence and highlighted the ability of SIPs to identify specific skills 
needs and appropriate action required.  In direct response to skills data gathered this year, we launched both Digital World, our multi-
channel marketing campaign to stimulate interest in careers in the ICT & Digital Technologies sector, and Scotland’s first digital skills 
academy, CodeClan. Officially opened in October 2015 amid a global shortage of skills in the digital sector, CodeClan’s curriculum has 
been tailored to fit real-time market demands and it has already seen its first students graduate.   
 
 

http://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
Our engagement with priority sectors also informed the development and introduction of new work-based learning pathways to 
support the future workforce.  The first Foundation Apprenticeship pathfinders were developed and piloted in Engineering, 
Construction and Financial Services, with further programmes in development for the Energy and ICT sectors.  The development of 
our new Graduate Level Apprenticeships also began in 2015-16 with the first intake of apprenticeships in Summer 2016 as announced 
during this year’s Scottish Apprenticeship Week.  Combined, these will help to establish a clear pathway for work-based learning from 
school into highly skilled employment, and provide a valued alternative to academic options. 
 
Our Modern Apprenticeship (MA) programme continues to grow, supporting an increasing number of people to earn while they learn.  
And SIP and RSA analysis now contributes to the formal MA contracting process, with providers expected to demonstrate how their 
proposals meet the demands of the local economy as articulated in the skills evidence base.  New frameworks are also being developed 
in response to skills intelligence, to ensure that opportunities and investment are aligned with future demand.   
 
In addition to the direct engagement of employers through MAs and other SDS programmes, we established a ‘Team Scotland’ 
approach to reaching employers individually and through employer organisations, to inspire, support and embed a culture of 
continuous workforce development.   
 
Our Employer Services Team continued to work with employers across all sectors throughout Scotland, engaging more than 1,645 
small to medium enterprises (SMEs) and around 2,055 businesses in total; responding to over 12,074 employer enquiries received in 
person, through our helpline, our web service Our Skillsforce, or via partner organisations.   
 
Throughout 2015-16, Our Skillsforce gave us the chance to promote a wide range of services provided by SDS and our partners to 
even more businesses. The web service provided online information and support to an average of 11,290 unique users per month, up 
on the previous year.  
 
This year, we also supported more businesses through Skills for Growth – our bespoke programme, delivered via Investors in People, 
aimed at matching skills and people needs with business objectives. Skills for Growth experienced a 72% increase in the number of 
businesses it supported.  Other promoted initiatives such as our Flexible Training Opportunities (FTOs), and Low Carbon Skills Fund 
enabled us to support employers to invest in the in-work skills development of over 6,650 employees across Scotland.  
 
Through the promotion and delivery of the Scottish Employer Recruitment Incentive (SERI) we helped companies, including SMEs, 
to become fairer and more diverse workplaces, by supporting the recruitment of 1,251 young people from disadvantaged backgrounds. 
 
Responding to the recommendations of the Commission for Developing Scotland’s Young Workforce, we also worked through the 22 
DYW regional groups to encourage and support employers to engage with schools, and to actively recruit young people.   
 
This year, there was a marked increase in our Partnership Action for Continuing Employment (PACE) activity. This reflected the 
challenges faced by the Oil and Gas sector particularly in the North East with 47% of total PACE activity in Scotland concentrated in 
and around employers based in Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire in 2015-16, with the Shetland Islands accounting for an additional 
11%.  Our work through PACE supported the targeted partnership approach to job losses adopted through five Taskforces that were 
established in 2015-16.  
 
The PACE Team supporting the Fife Taskforce, which was specifically established to support workers from the Tullis Russell plant, 
were particularly praised in an Education Scotland Review for strong leadership in shaping services locally, and for working closely with 
strategic partners to develop and implement national priorities.  In total across Scotland, we delivered PACE services to individuals 
from 301 employers, supporting them through times of restructuring and redundancy; an increase of 19% on 2014-15. 
 
Making Skills Work for Individuals  
 
Throughout 2015-16, we continued to support individuals across Scotland to build their career management, work-based and 
employability skills, throughout their career journey; from school, into further learning opportunities and employment.   
 
A key focus for our schools work this year was the development and dissemination of a suite of documents. Following extensive 
engagement with a range of partners, we developed and published the Career Education Standard (CES), Guidance on the partnership 
between schools and employers and the Work Placements Standard, in September 2015.  We then worked with the National Parent 
Forum of Scotland to produce a ‘nutshell’ guide to the CES, which was distributed to all parents of a child in Secondary education, to 
help them understand their and our role in delivering CES.  In partnership with Education Scotland, we also helped develop a training 
module for teachers, which was rolled out in February 2016. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
In the past year, in line with recommendations from Scotland’s Youth Employment Strategy, we also focused on developing an 
expanded service offer in schools designed to engage and inspire young people at an earlier stage than before and help to better prepare 
them for the world of work.  To achieve this, some of our activities included: 

• working with P5-P7 teachers to develop lessons plans for delivering the CES; 
• the introduction of group work for all pupils making the transition from primary to secondary school; 
• 35 ‘Pathfinder’ schools developing and demonstrating the extended Career Information, Advice and Guidance (CIAG) offer 

to S2/S3 pupils, particularly offering support to make subject choices; and 
• trialling a 12-week programme of one-to-one and group work for those S3 pupils in the greatest need of support. 

 
The lessons learned from these pathfinder schools will shape this extended offer as it is rolled out across Scotland in August 2016.  We 
also conducted initial consultations to shape how this earlier intervention will be delivered to benefit looked-after children (LAC) and 
pupils with additional support needs (ASN). 
 
Meanwhile, we continued to support pupils in the senior phase of school through a combination of individual and group work.  53,604 
pupils received one-to-one coaching support from SDS advisers working in Scotland’s schools; including 75% of the 48,588 pupils in 
S4-S6 identified as needing medium or maximum support.   
 
We enhanced this coaching provision by introducing ‘My Career Plan’ which helps pupils with additional support needs better 
understand their CMS progression.  In addition to individual engagement, a total of 102,236 pupils, 77% of all pupils in the senior 
phase, received support through group work interventions in school, including workshops on Career Management Skills and Labour 
Market Information.   
  
As a measure of the impact of the work of SDS and its partners, we continued to see a year-on-year increase of school leavers entering 
positive destinations, which in 2014/15 reached a high of 92.9%.  Girls achieved a slightly higher rate (94.1%) than boys (91.8 %), 
while those from ethnic minorities were also more likely to achieve a positive destination (93.8%).  Our commitment to continuous 
improvement in schools also achieved an increase in pupil satisfaction as reported in our School Leavers’ Survey, rising to 67% in 2015, 
and showed more than four in five pupils or leavers reporting one or more benefits from our support. 
 
Working in close partnership with schools, colleges and employers has been critical to the success of our first Foundation 
Apprenticeships, with 341 pupils from 78 schools leading the way in adopting this new approach to work-based learning.  The 
Foundation Apprenticeships complement our more established programme of MAs and provide senior phase pupils with vital work 
experience while they learn.  
 
Our CIAG offer to individuals was greatly enhanced during 2015-16 through the redevelopment and launch of the next generation of 
My World of Work (MyWoW).  The updated site includes a data model that has been established to give users, including parents and 
teachers, access to data-driven content around the labour market and potential jobs and careers.  As well as hosting new and updated 
text and video content, including tutorials, local job profiles across a wide range of industries, career and employer expert content, the 
service is also now compatible with mobile technology, such as tablets and smartphones.  These significant improvements make our 
web service more accessible, responsive and user-friendly than ever before.   
 
The number of individuals using MyWoW has exceeded expectations, with an average of 215,328 unique users per month visiting the 
site over the year.  The new site includes tools to support our earlier engagement with school pupils around subject choices, and work 
has already begun to develop new interactive activities for use with Primary school pupils.   
 
Building on the continuing success of MyWoW Live! at the Glasgow Science Centre, we have secured a new partnership with National 
Museums Scotland to open new sites going forward.  This will further our ability to reach and inspire young people into STEM 
(science, technology, engineering and mathematics) careers. 
 
Through our careers centres we have maintained a strong focus on supporting the ‘Opportunities for All’ (OfA) agenda.  Despite a rise 
in the numbers of 16-19 year olds choosing to remain in full-time education, we have been able to support 27,850 young people 
through one-to-one post-school coaching support.  Of these, 57% progressed into a positive destination, with 47% sustaining that 
destination for more than six months.  For some young people, the Certificate of Work Readiness provides the best opportunity to 
acquire employability skills. Last year we supported 3,269 young people through this programme by enabling them to gain vital 
experience in the workplace.   
 
In August 2015, we published, for the first time, a new ‘Participation Measure’, which supports the OfA by providing analysis of the 
number of 16-19 year olds in learning, training or work.  This experimental data indicated a headline figure of 87.6% of 16-19 year olds 
participating in education, training or employment.  This will be a key measure for us to develop and monitor going forwards. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
The Employability Fund (EF) supported 17,321 unemployed individuals to access specialist support to build their employability skills – 
the majority of whom (77%) were aged 16-24.  EF provides support through programmes jointly commissioned with partners locally.   
66% of EF participants in 2015-16 achieved a qualification, progressed to a further stage of the pipeline, or entered employment during 
the programme; of leavers achieving an outcome, 68% moved into employment.  95% of all EF participants reported that they found 
this programme useful.   
 
To make our EF provision accessible to all, we launched the ASN Access Fund, which can provide funding for customers on stages 2-
4 of the pipeline with additional support needs, in order to overcome barriers to participating on the programme.  We also tendered for 
a new three year programme of the ESF Third Sector Fund, which will increase our specialist support for those furthest from the 
labour market.   
 
We worked closely with Scottish Government throughout 2015-16 to consult on, develop and prepare for the new nation-wide 
employability service being devolved from the Department for Work and Pensions.  Our continuation of this work is detailed in our 
commitments for 2016-17. 
 
Our MA programme successfully reached its expansion target for 2015-16 with a total of 25,818 individuals starting an apprenticeship 
during the year; this was the first step towards achieving 30,000 starts per year in 2020.  We are committed to focusing the allocation of 
MAs on young people and higher level skills attainment, and last year 80% of new MAs were taken up by 16-24 year olds, with 65% at 
Level 3 or above.  Our additional focus on growth and high participation sectors, including STEM-related frameworks, has been 
strongly delivered; more than doubling our target for MA starts in 2015-16 in the energy sector.  There was also an increase in the 
achievement rates for MAs, with 76% of participants completing their apprenticeships successfully. 
 
In December 2015, we published our MA Equality Action Plan which detailed how we will work to increase and support the number 
of MA starts from under-represented groups including increasing uptake from individuals from black and minority ethnic (BME) 
communities, disabled people and care leavers, as well as addressing issues of gender balance in certain sectors.  The plan also embraces 
the wider goal of improving equality of access for all and includes activities that will influence the career choices of young people. 
 
The plan was developed using: 

• stakeholder feedback from employers and partners (such as BEMIS, Close the Gap and Capability Scotland) working with 
young people, to learn from their experience and offer practical steps towards creating more diverse workforces that are 
inclusive and supportive; and 

• existing evidence highlighting factors affecting participation in MAs 
 

Delivery of the plan will rely on strong, sustained partnership working with educational partners, third sector and employers. 
 
Initial projects arising from this plan include: 

• launching the Equality Challenge Fund for projects aimed at widening access to Modern Apprenticeships and the Employers’ 
Equality Action Fund to help employers recruit Modern Apprentices from diverse backgrounds; 

• working in partnership with the Institute of Physics (IOP) and Education Scotland to develop the Improving Gender 
Balance Scotland project to empower pupils, teachers, parents and local authorities to address the complex issues that can 
lead to stereotyping when it comes to picking school subjects, and supporting them to challenge traditional career choices; 

• work within Ayrshire College to encourage better gender balance among STEM opportunities;  
• a project in East Kilbride to support young people with learning difficulties to progress on to MA opportunities; and 
• a project with Rathbone to recruit young people from BME communities in Tayside and Fife to apprenticeship opportunities 

or to participate in employability provision that would act as a pathway to a Modern Apprenticeship.  
 
To drive forward this work, we welcomed three dedicated equality advisers to work within our National Training Programmes team 
and funded a number of Equality Action Plan projects. 
 
Following the launch of Apprenticeships.scot in March 2015, we saw great progress in the number of site users, as well as the volume 
of vacancies uploaded and online applications submitted – the site was visited by an average of 17,039 unique users each month, who 
had the chance to apply to 2,850 total opportunities uploaded in 2015-16.   
 
Our Individual Learning Accounts (ILAs) can be used to fund training opportunities for people with low incomes who are looking to 
enter or progress in employment.  We continued to review the delivery of this programme over the year, while still facilitating 
attendance at 23,970 courses across Scotland.  
 
The challenging economic factors, noted earlier, meant our PACE services had to meet high demand.  The SDS-led PACE 
partnerships delivered services to 17,883 individuals who were at risk of redundancy during 2015-16; an increase of 47% on the 
previous year.  This included attendance from excess of 2,000 individuals over just three events held in Aberdeen.   
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
We saw a similar increase of 40% of individuals supported through our ‘Adopt an Apprentice’ programme which supports Modern 
Apprentices who have been made redundant to find alternative employers with whom to complete their apprenticeships. 
 
Achieving our ambitions for SDS 
 
As an organisation we are committed to a culture of continuous improvement, driving the performance of our service delivery, and in 
achieving efficiencies and excellence throughout the business.   
 
In 2015-16, we took steps towards achieving our ambition of being an employer of choice and an exemplar of fair work and, in line 
with the publication of a new five year Corporate Plan, we embarked upon a significant cultural change programme aimed at 
transforming the organisation’s approach to management and leadership.  
 
We undertook a programme of staff engagement activity, working with more than 400 members of staff to explore the concept of 
‘everyday leadership’ and develop a set of refreshed organisational values. With a focus on building clarity and capability, our values and 
a culture of everyday leadership will help us: 

• deliver the best possible service to our customers; 
• encourage continuous improvement across the organisation; and 
• enable our people to perform to the best of their capability. 

 
Recognising that cultural change takes time, we will continue to engage colleagues in this journey in the coming years, embedding our 
new values and promoting a culture of everyday leadership through staff engagement, internal communications and performance 
management.  
 
Throughout 2015-16, we continued to embed our commitment to continuous improvement, with teams across the business adopting 
our Business Excellence approach and embarking upon a self-assessment programme.  Self-assessments in 2015-16 recorded a range of 
improvements achieved, including improved materials for group work, and increased school leaver satisfaction.  
 
We also worked closely with Education Scotland (ES) throughout 2015-16 as part of eight external reviews of our work. Reviews this 
year included a detailed look at our My World of Work web service, the Engineering Modern Apprenticeship and six of our Career 
Information, Advice and Guidance delivery teams.  Reviews this year once again endorsed the quality of Career Information, Advice 
and Guidance services we deliver to our customers, with 100% receiving a good or above rating, and 69% rated very good or excellent. 
 
As an employer, we are committed to developing all colleagues, through adopting fair work principles and promoting health and well-
being.  Last year, we achieved Living Wage Accreditation as well as our Bronze Healthy Working Lives award, which both recognise 
our commitment to our people.  We intend to maintain these achievements and work towards further accreditation going forwards. 
 
Our commitment to developing the young workforce, as an employer as well as a provider, remains undiminished.  We employed a 
further 57 people on our expanding Young Talent programme in 2015-16, through a combination of traineeships, internships and 
Modern Apprenticeships.  We were delighted to achieve the Investors in Young People Award as recognition of our work in this area, 
and to see the progression made by the young people themselves.  Of those who completed or left the Young Talent programme this 
year, more than 90% moved on to a positive destination.  
 
Throughout 2015-16, our Human Resources department continued to support managers and colleagues at all levels to maximise their 
own performance and the performance of others through continuous professional development and our performance management 
approach, Aspire.  
 
The SDS Academy continued to offer a variety of learning opportunities to support business change and improvement with a variety 
of learning opportunities, including a targeted programme of CPD for our Career Information, Advice and Guidance colleagues to 
upskill both individuals and teams to further improve service delivery for our customers.  
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
SDS continues to champion equality, diversity and inclusion, promoting equality of opportunity both as a service provider and as an 
employer.  
 
In addition to our Equality Action Plan for Modern Apprenticeships published in December 2015, we published our second Equality 
Mainstreaming report in line with the Equality Act 2010 and Specific Duties (Scotland) Regulations 2012. This publication in April 
2015 included an update on our Equality Outcomes together with a range of employee information, including our equal pay audit. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
As at 31 March 2016, the balance between male and female members of staff within SDS was as follows:  
 

 Male Female 
Non-executive directors and co-opted board members 7 4 
Executive directors and senior executive managers 4 1 
Employees 394 1,020 

 
We continue to work towards improving the diversity of our workforce in line with the diversity of Scotland’s working age population. 
Our Young Talent initiative has been successful in improving the diversity of our workforce with a particular impact on our age profile 
and those identifying as disabled.  In addition we continue to be a Stonewall Diversity Champion and a ‘Two Ticks’ positive about 
disabled people employer.  In November 2015 we also achieved the Investors in Young People good practice award.  
  
Working with equality partners continues to be crucial to our work in this space. Throughout 2015-16, we continued to work with a 
range of equality and diversity partners and key SDS staff through our Equality Advisory Group, chaired by our Board Equality 
Champion our internal Equality Management Group and our network of Equality Champions.  
 
We have this year worked closely with the additional partners such as the training consultancy 3i and the Equality Challenge Unit, who 
delivered training for our Skills Investment Advisers and have supported our work to update and enhance our equality toolkits for both 
colleagues and training providers, due for publication in May 2016.  
 
Also in 2015-16, we undertook our third Equality and Diversity Culture Survey which aims to not only seek feedback from colleagues 
on our approach to equality and diversity, but also raise any areas for improvement.  Overall, colleagues were positive about equality 
and diversity in SDS and scores improved since 2013.  82% of staff agreed or strongly agreed SDS is an equal opportunities employer 
and 76% agreed or strongly agreed SDS is committed to improving performance on equality and diversity.  The need for ongoing 
equality updates was identified and an equality and diversity specific newsfeed is planned for our Connect intranet to address this.  
 
In addition, we established an Equality and Diversity Marketing and Communications group which aims to maximise all opportunities 
to promote the importance of fair work to both internal and external audiences.   
 
Looking forward, in 2016 we are planning to take part in the Stonewall Workplace Equality Index.  This benchmarking exercise will 
assist us in identifying areas we could improve, as well as highlighting any areas where we are doing well.  Although the focus is on 
LGBT equality, it will also be relevant to other equality groups. 
 
We will also continue to work with partners to ensure staff are confident to support customers from all protected groups, including 
planned sessions from the Scottish Transgender Alliance and the development of unconscious bias training. 
 
Employee Engagement 
 
We are committed to ensuring all of our employees are engaged in the delivery of our organisational goals, priorities, achievements and 
successes, and are aware of how their contributions complement the strategic direction of our organisation. In addition, we believe that 
we have a constructive and developing relationship with our recognised trades unions.  
 
In 2015-16, we conducted our second ‘Your Views’ colleague survey, which invited colleagues to feed back on their experiences of 
working at SDS. Against the previous year’s findings, we noted a marked improvement in a number of areas, particularly around 
organisational awareness and support from their manager.   
 
For the first time, in 2015-16 we also conducted our Internal Support Services Survey, which aimed to gather feedback from colleagues 
on their experiences of our 13 support services including teams such as HR, finance, procurement and communications and marketing 
teams.  Senior colleagues across SDS held a series of team sessions to share the results of both surveys to better understand the 
findings within each local area and develop continuous improvement action plans to capture activity to address any specific concerns 
raised.  
 
We continued to keep colleagues up to date and engage them in any changes across the organisation via a blend of communication 
channels. For example, Connect, our staff intranet, has contributors from all directorates and team news channels ensure there is a 
focus on local delivery. Through a bi-weekly brief, Team Talk, our People Managers are supported to update and engage their teams on 
the latest news from across the organisation. And on a monthly basis, colleagues can read up on the latest corporate and social news 
across SDS in our online newsletter, Talking Point.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
Digital First 
 
Throughout 2015-16, we took steps to further harness our digital capability to improve both our efficiency and effectiveness as an 
organisation.  In line with the Public Records Scotland Act (2011), we developed an Electronic Document and Records Management 
System, iShare, to support the effective management of internal records which we started to roll out across the business this year.  We 
also continued extensive work towards improving the integration of customer databases, financial and other management information 
systems, and enhancing data management processes and information quality.  
 
Sustainability 
 
In 2012, we published our first Carbon Management Plan with a target to reduce carbon emissions by 30% by April 2015, based on 
2010-11 levels. As a result of continued commitment to carbon management and a staff engagement programme, we surpassed our 
target this year, achieving an impressive 35% reduction in our carbon footprint through a combination of energy efficiency, estate 
rationalisation and recycling provisions. 
 
In 2015-16, we received recertification of the Carbon Trust Standard and, aligned to our five year Corporate Plan, published our 
Carbon Management Plan for 2015-2020.  This sets an ambitious target of achieving a further 7% reduction in our carbon footprint by 
2020, from our 2014-15 baseline, equating to a 42% reduction by 2020 in line with the Scottish Government’s ambitions for carbon 
reduction.    
 
We are on target to achieve the 7%, having achieved a 1.2% reduction in the first and second quarters of 2015-16.  Activities already 
completed, such as our energy audit of 31 offices across Scotland, will inform future savings. 
 
More information on our commitment to sustainability is available in our Sustainability Report on our website. 
 
Procurement 
 
Our award-winning Procurement Team undertook the Full Independent Procurement Commercial Improvement Programme (PCIP) 
assessment in February 2016, receiving the highest performance banding and scoring 87%.  
 
The Ready for Business website published a Case Study on how SDS procures in a responsible and sustainable manner with our 
Responsible and Sustainable Procurement Strategy being featured. Our business with third sector/socio-economic organisations has 
grown sixty fold from £0.2 million in 2011-12 to £12.0 million in 2015-16. For example, SDS called upon legislation available to work 
with the supported business Redrock in a digitisation project.  In addition the procurement team participated in a volunteering day with 
the British Association of Supported Businesses in Larbert in January 2016. 
 
SDS complies with Treaty principles of transparency and equal treatment which facilitate a pro-active approach to Fair Work Practices 
and our Terms and Conditions now include a clause on Fair Work Practices. 
 
In adherence to the Procurement Reform Scotland Act 2014 and to ensure openness and transparency as to the contracts we award, we 
now publish a Central Contracts Register on our website each quarter. In line with the new act we also published our second Annual 
Procurement Report in June 2015. 
 
Our Procurement Dashboard measures our performance against Key Performance Indicators. Savings of £1.2 million against standard 
rate cards were made with one hundred contracts placed during 2015-16. 
 
We also have introduced Balanced Scorecards following the introduction of the SDS Contracts and Supplier Relationship Management 
for central contracts which will allow us to manage our suppliers in a cohesive and consistent manner, thereby mitigating risks and 
ensuring value for money. 
 
We continued to support the Scottish Government through the ‘Procurement People of Tomorrow’ programme with qualification 
pathways being established in both vocational and academic qualifications in 2015-16. There are now more than 50 apprentices 
following the Procurement and Supply Chain framework across the Scottish Public Sector and the Scottish National Health Service has 
also now established a national programme for MAs. 
 
Gaelic Language 
 
During 2015-16 our Gaelic Development Officer, along with colleagues and stakeholders, continued to implement the Gaelic Language 
Plan and held a series of Gaelic Careers events. We have also been working with partners to take forward Gaelic Foundation 
Apprenticeships, Modern Apprenticeships and Gaelic within Creative Industries and will continue to look at how we best use our 
Gaelic resources within schools as part of our Career Information, Advice and Guidance service.  
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Later in 2016, we will publish the second iteration of our Gaelic Language Plan, which is a statutory obligation under The Gaelic 
Language (Scotland) Act 2005. This follows the publication of the Gaelic Language Plan (GLP) which set out SDS’s commitment to 
supporting the use of Gaelic in delivering its core services. The second iteration of the plan will build on the experience of 
implementing the first plan and develop ambitious and practical outcomes. Every organisation that produces a GLP is required to 
complete a survey of Gaelic skills within their organisation. Results of the SDS survey, which was carried out in February 2016, 
indicated that there is a large interest in Gaelic throughout SDS.  
 
Financial Overview 
 
The results for the year to 31 March 2016 are contained in the attached financial statements, prepared in accordance with the 2015-16 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in the form directed by the Scottish Ministers, taking account of the Scottish 
Public Finance Manual.   
 
The FReM requires that the company should comply with the Companies Act, but, as a non-departmental public body, also follow the 
principles in the FReM where these go beyond the Companies Act. The accounting policies explain the basis on which the financial 
statements are prepared and transactions are recognised. 
 
The resource budget allocation for 2015-16 comprised a revised grant-in-aid provision of £207.8 million (2015: £196.1 million).  
Revenue for the year was supplemented with sales income of £12.8 million (2015: £12.5 million) on a cost recovery basis and £0.9 
million (2015: £nil) of European funding. 
 
Financial Management 
 
Prudent financial management throughout the year has ensured our financial outturn is within the Resource Budget allocated by 
Scottish Ministers for the year to 31 March 2016.  In addition to ensuring our grant funding was fully expended within the parameters 
set by the Scottish Government, we contributed £2.4 million (2015: £1.5 million) to Scottish Government Strategic Forum savings and  
continued to provide additional stimulus to small and medium sized enterprises and provide the best credit terms to our suppliers to 
help with their flow of cash. 
 
Risk and Uncertainty 
 
During the year, Skills Development Scotland has continued to use a structured approach for identifying, assessing and managing risks 
at corporate and directorate levels to ensure that our strategic priorities and business functions are not adversely affected by significant 
risks that have not been anticipated. 
 
We continue to adhere to a Board approved Risk Management Policy, which is available to all staff on our intranet. The Policy sets out 
our attitude to risk, our approach to managing the potential barriers to achieving our objectives and highlights that risk management 
and internal control are firmly aligned to our ability to achieve key business objectives. 
 
We highlight our principal risks in our Corporate Risk Register. The Register takes account of strategic and operational risks including 
those stemming from current economic and budgetary challenges. The Register is scrutinised monthly by senior management and 
quarterly, on behalf of the Board, at the Audit and Risk Committee. Key risks include being unable to: 

• respond to the changing economic climate; 
• optimise working with partners to meet customer needs; 
• maximise use of IT/IS to support the delivery of key services; and 
• recruit/retain the right mix of staff. 

 
The thread running through these risks is ‘change’ and our capacity to manage successfully what has been, and will continue to be, 
significant change across the services we offer. 
 
All senior executive managers, through their six-monthly Risk Assurance Statements and Annual Control Statement provide assurance 
that the SDS Risk Management Policy and Guidance is being followed in their areas, that internal controls are operating as intended 
and that actions are being taken to address Audit Scotland Performance Reports’ recommendations. 
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Company Status 
 
The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited is a company limited by guarantee and registered in Scotland. The sole members are the 
Scottish Ministers.  SDS is an Executive Non-Departmental Public Body, operated through a limited company structure. 
 
SDS owns 100% of the issued share capital of Scottish UFI Limited.  SDS  has control of Careers Trust Scotland Ltd, which is a 
charitable company limited by guarantee with the object of improving the employability and enterprise skills of the people of Scotland 
and increasing participation in learning and employment.  
 
Scottish Ministers appoint the Chair, Chief Executive and non-executive directors of SDS, and the same directors have been appointed 
to the board of Scottish UFI Limited. Scottish UFI Limited is not used for operational activities. The Board is responsible for our 
overall direction and strategy and for securing the optimum performance from company assets.  There is a formal policy of delegated 
authority, which includes matters specifically reserved to the board for decisions.  All non-executive directors are independent of the 
company. 
 
Going Concern 
 
As at 31 March 2016, the group’s balance sheet had net liabilities of £41.5 million (2015: £75.1 million).  The directors are confident 
that the relationship with the Scottish Government is such that the company will have sufficient funding for the foreseeable future.  In 
particular, the directors have taken cognisance of the sole membership of Skills Development Scotland which Scottish Ministers 
assumed in September 2004, and of the indication from Scottish Government of continued Grant-in-Aid funding in 2016-17.  
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 
Future Developments 
 
Our five year Corporate Plan 2015-2020 outlines the economic, policy and wider context in which we operate, and describes our 
ambition to drive growth and improve fairness and equality at work through our five goals:  

• employers are able to recruit the right people with the right skills at the right time; 
• employers have high performing, highly productive, fair and equal workplaces; 
• people have the right skills and confidence to secure good work and progress in their careers; 
• increased opportunity for all; and 
• we are an employer of choice and an exemplar of fair work.  

 
In setting our ambitions for the next five years, we have articulated how we would respond to a range of external and internal drivers 
such as high levels of youth unemployment, in-work poverty, under-employment and continued constraints on public spending, and 
how we would continue to support Scottish Government response to these challenges.  
 
With the aim of ensuring young people have the skills they need to secure jobs and progress in work, the Youth Employment Strategy 
sets a clear framework for the expansion of work-based learning, so that employers and the economy can benefit from a work-ready, 
skilled workforce. Within this, we are committed to expanding apprenticeship start numbers to 30,000 by 2020, further developing 
Foundation and Graduate Level Apprenticeships to offer more high level opportunities and help to address under-representation of 
certain groups in various industries. 
 
Our Corporate Plan lays out our aim to further develop a robust evidence base on skills demands, using that evidence to work with 
partners to reshape and strengthen the education and skills system to ensure it delivers the skills Scotland needs.  Our strategies include 
earlier intervention in schools to build career management skills and the development of new work-based learning pathways, such as 
foundation apprenticeships, which will offer young people a broader range of options and allow them to more successfully progress 
from school into the world of work.  
 
Our plan also supports the Scottish Government’s drive to build a fairer and more productive Scotland. The Scottish Economic 
Strategy underlines the importance of tackling inequality and improving fairness if economic goals are to be achieved. Our plan 
determines our ambition to be an employer of choice and an exemplar of fair work.  It includes commitments to train our workforce, 
workplace innovation, promote equality, and to demonstrate the benefits these bring, building on the constructive relationships with 
colleagues and trades unions. 
 
We will continue to drive more and better outcomes from limited public funds, and remain committed to the objectives of the Digital 
Public Services Strategy and other expectations of public bodies, such as those recommended by the Christie Commission.  Our plan 
makes clear that digital solutions will continue to be a foundation of our services, building on the success to date of My World of Work 
and Our Skillsforce web services, to take steps to further reduce our carbon footprint, and to continue driving innovation and 
efficiency improvements through our continuous improvement programme.  
 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    12 

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 (CONT’D) 
 
We are also acutely aware of the continued need to respond to external changes, most notably helping to shape future employability 
services for Scotland following the announcement to devolve some programmes to Scotland and harnessing the opportunities offered 
by the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy in 2017.  
 
Taking account of the recommendations coming from Developing the Young Workforce (DYW) to establish an apprenticeship board, 
SDS moved quickly in the latter part of 2015-16 to set up a new Scottish Apprenticeship Advisory Board (SAAB) with extensive 
employer and industry involvement. 
 
Our commitment to supporting an economy that is strong, inclusive and diverse is reinforced in our extensive contribution to the ‘end-
to-end’ review of the roles and relationships of the enterprise, development and skills agencies in Scotland announced in May 2016 by 
the First Minister. 
 
The review will bring forward recommendations for how Scotland can maximise key economic interventions and focuses on three 
themes: 

• delivering outcomes which lead to a step change in our economic performance and a more productive and inclusive economy, 
as set out in Scotland’s Economic Strategy and National Performance Framework; 

• ensuring our economic and skills interventions are shaped by users’ needs; and 
• ensuring that delivery continuously reflects best practice. 

 
Our annual operating plan for 2016-17 identifies the priority actions in these areas that begin the journey towards achieving our five 
year strategic goals. 
 
By order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
16 September 2016 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 
 
Strategic Report 
 
In accordance with section 414(c) (11) of the Companies Act 2006, Skills Development Scotland has chosen to include several matters 
in the Strategic Report which would otherwise be included in the Directors’ Report. 
 
These matters are: 

• the review of the business and performance against performance indicators; 
• future developments; 
• subsequent events since year end; 
• diversity and equality matters for employees; 
• employee consultation. 

 
Directors and Their Interests 
 
The directors of the company who held office during the year and to the date of signing of these financial statements were as follows: 
 
Name      
D Boyd * 
R Crawford *   
W Mackie *  
S MacKinnon *      
J McClelland * (Chairman, re-appointed 28 February 2016)  
P McKelvie *   (term ended 31 July 2016)  
C Pollock ^ (re-appointed 1 July 2015) 
H Sasan ^  
G Smith *  
C Stuart*      
G Waddell * 
D Yeates +    (Chief Executive)  
  
+ executive      * non-executive ^ co-opted board member 
 
John McClelland CBE was re-appointed as Chair of Skills Development Scotland on the 28 February 2016. 
 
P McKelvie, non-executive director, term ended on 31 July 2016. 
 
C Pollock was re-appointed as a co-opted board member on 1 July 2015.  Co-opted board members are not registered directors of the 
company. 
 
No Board members held any significant interests in the company or its subsidiary companies at any time during the year that conflicted 
with their management responsibilities.  Details of directors’ interests are given in Note 17 Related Parties.   
 
The Board of Skills Development Scotland, chaired by John McClelland CBE, met six times during the year. 
 
Conflicts of Interest Procedures 
 
We developed and implemented strict and comprehensive procedures to deal with potential conflicts of interest.  These include 
holding, and updating at least annually, registers of interests covering not only Board members but also members of staff. 
 
Interests which must be registered, in terms of the name and nature of the organisation in which the interest is held, include: 
remuneration, related undertakings, contracts, houses, land and buildings, shares and securities, non-financial interests, gifts and 
hospitality.  Whenever a Board member or member of staff has an interest in an application for assistance, they are required to declare 
the interest and thereafter to take no part in the investigation, processing or approval of the case.  Such declarations by Board members 
are recorded in the minutes of the appropriate Board meetings. 
 
We publish the registers of interests of our Board members on our website and all registers of interests are available for public review 
upon written request to the registered office. 
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Standing Committees 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the strategic process for risk management, internal control, corporate governance and 
statutory financial obligations.  The Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least two 
non-executive directors of SDS.  The Committee meets at least four times a year and has written terms of reference setting out its 
authority.  Internal and external auditors attend the Audit and Risk Committee. 
 
The Finance and Operational Performance Committee oversees the operating performance and financial management of SDS.  The 
Finance and Operational Performance Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least two 
non-executive directors of Skills Development Scotland.  The committee meets at least four times a year and has written terms of 
reference setting out its authority. 
 
The Remuneration and Human Resources Committee meets twice a year and is comprised of at least two non-executive directors of 
Skills Development Scotland. 
 
The Service Development Committee meets every six weeks and oversees service redesign and implementation.  The Committee is 
chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least three non-executive directors of Skills Development 
Scotland. 
 
The Nominations Committee meets on an ad hoc basis and provides advice and support to the SDS Chair in respect of Board member 
responsibilities and in particular to review the membership of SDS Board Committees.  The Nominations Committee is chaired by an 
independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least three non-executive directors of Skills Development Scotland.   
 
The Joint Skills Committee is comprised of SDS and the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) representatives.  Members are drawn from 
the Scottish Funding Council’s main Council, our Board and a range of other external stakeholder bodies with an interest in skills 
policy and delivery.  The Committee meets quarterly.  Its aim is to improve the understanding of skills needs in different areas of the 
economy and to work in partnership with stakeholders to ensure that Scotland has a skilled and adaptable workforce.  The Joint Skills 
Committee is chaired by an SFC Council member and the vice-chair is an SDS Board Member.  Its membership includes three non-
executive directors of Skills Development Scotland. 
 
Results  
 
The financial statements report a total comprehensive income for the group for the year of £33.6 million (2015: comprehensive 
expense of £60.1 million) which is influenced by IAS 19 pension adjustments.  Removing the effects of actuarial activities the operating 
surplus is £0.7 million (2015: operating deficit of £0.5 million). 
 
The directors recognise the significant impact of the actuarial valuation of pension assets and liabilities on the results for the year and 
are satisfied that the operating results are in accordance with management projections and within budgetary constraints and available 
reserves.   
 
Accounting for Pension Scheme Liabilities 
 
Pension assets and liabilities are recognised in the financial statements in line with the accounting policy at Note 1.  IAS 19 Employee 
Benefits requires that the assets and liabilities of the pension scheme are incorporated into the balance sheet.  As more fully explained 
in Note 7 the group and company Statements of Financial Position report a net liability of £61.2 million for the pension schemes at 31 
March 2016 (2015: £94.1 million).  
 
Actuarial valuations are prepared at the request of the administering authority on a triennial basis for each of the two Local 
Government Pensions Schemes (LGPS) the group participates in, namely; Strathclyde Pension Fund and Highland Council Pension 
Fund.  Details of the latest valuations, to 31 March 2014, can be obtained from published reports. 
 
Supplier Payment Policy 
 
It is our policy to agree terms of payment when orders for goods and services are placed and to adhere to these arrangements.  In 
addition, due to the current economic conditions it is our policy, where possible, to comply with the Scottish Government’s Prompt 
Payment Commitment (issued December 2009) of making payment of authorised invoices within 10 days.  Average trade credit days as 
at 31 March 2016 were 9 days (2015: 8 days). 
 
Political and Charitable Donations 
 
The company made no charitable or political donations in the year. 
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Amounts Payable to Auditor for Non Audit Work 
 
Fees payable for non audit services provided by the appointed auditor for the year ended 31 March 2016 were £2,460 (2015: £2,460). 
 
Freedom of Information 
 
The Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act, which came into full force in January 2005, means members of the public can make a 
request to see information held by us.  In the year to 31 March 2016, we received and responded to 30 Freedom of Information 
requests (2015: 35).  
 
Data Loss 
 
There were no reported incidents of unauthorised exposure or loss of personal data during the financial year. 
 
Sickness Absence 
 
We have appropriate processes in place to manage all aspects of absence. In the year to 31 March 2016, 2.5 % (2015: 2.9%) of working 
time was lost due to staff sickness absence. 
 
Auditor 
 
As a non-profit making public sector company, which appears to the Scottish Ministers in terms of section 483(2) of that Act to carry 
out functions of a public nature, under The Companies Act 2006 (Scottish public sector companies to be audited by the Auditor 
General for Scotland) Order 2009, the Scottish Ministers have determined that the financial statements of the company shall be audited 
by the Auditor General for Scotland.  The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed KPMG LLP to undertake the audit for the year 
ended 31 March 2016. 
 
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.  These financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with a form directed by the Scottish Ministers. 
 
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have 
taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware 
of that information. 
 
By order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
16 September 2016 
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Chair and Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Chair and non-executive directors are paid an annual amount, as salary, at a level agreed by Scottish Ministers.  The salary rate is 
normally assessed on an annual basis.  Appointments are made on a two and four year basis. 
 
Chief Executive 
 
The Chief Executive’s pay is reviewed annually, and any pay award is dependent on performance, and must be approved in accordance 
with Scottish Government protocols.  The Chief Executive’s performance is assessed formally by the Chair using pre-determined 
criteria. 
 
Executive Leadership Group 
 
Details are disclosed for senior executives, comprising the Chief Executive and senior executive managers fulfilling the roles of Senior 
Director of Service Development and Delivery, Senior Director of Enabling Services, Director of Finance and Audit, and Director of 
Corporate Services.  The senior executive managers are not registered as directors of the company under the Companies Act.  
 
Service Contracts 
 
Staff appointments are based on merit and are on the basis of fair and open competition.  The Chief Executive and senior executive 
managers are permanent employees with up to 12 month notice periods.  There are no early termination payment clauses within the 
contracts. 
 
Remuneration & Appointments  
 
Due to the company’s NDPB status, remuneration is reviewed annually in accordance with Public Sector Pay Guidelines and approval 
is provided by the Scottish Government.  
 
No benefits in kind were paid to and no long-term incentive schemes are held by the Chair or non-executive directors.   
 
The Chief Executive and senior executive managers’ posts are pensionable unless provided by a third party.  The Chair and non-
executive director appointments are not pensionable. 
 
Appointments are carried out in line with employment legislation, with the exception of the Chief Executive and non-executive 
directors’ positions which are carried out within the guidelines for senior public sector appointments. 
 
Salary and Allowances 
 
Salary includes gross salary but not employer’s pension contributions. There were no payments in respect of performance pay or 
bonuses during the year.  
 
Allowances relate to designation as essential users within our Car Scheme.  
 
Pensions 
 
Pension benefits are provided through one of two HM Revenue & Customs approved defined benefit schemes.  
 
Employee contributions are currently set at a tiered rate dependent on gross salary at 31 March 2015.   Typically for a senior executive 
manager this is c10%, excluding performance pay, bonus or ex-gratia payments.  Employer contributions are c19%. Benefits accrue at 
the rate of 1/49th for each year of service. 
 
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
 
The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of pension scheme benefits accrued by a 
member at a particular point in time.  The benefits valued are those of the member and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from 
the scheme. A CETV would be the payment made from a scheme or an arrangement made to secure benefits in another pension 
scheme when the member leaves the current scheme and chooses to transfer benefits accrued.  CETVs are calculated within the 
framework and guidelines prescribed by the Faculty of Actuaries.  
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Information Subject to Audit 
 
Beyond the requirements of the FReM, the following sections of this report are presented for audit: remuneration, pension, salary and 
allowance, benefits in kind, cash equivalent transfer values and compensation for loss of office and pension payment.  
 
Remuneration of the Chair and non-executive directors for the year to 31 March 2016 was as follows:- 

   
2015-16 

  
2014-15 

  
Salary 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded)  

Salary 
(banded) 

Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
           
J McClelland CBE (Chairman)  30 - 35 - - 30 - 35  30 - 35 - - 30 - 35 
D Boyd  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
R Crawford  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
A Douglas (term ended 18/05/14)  - - - -  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
W Mackie (appointed 01/08/14)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
S MacKinnon (appointed 01/08/14)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
P McKelvie (term ended 31/07/16)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
G Smith (appointed 01/08/14)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
C Stuart  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
G Waddell  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 

 
D Boyd was an adviser to the Audit and Risk Committee, as appointed by the board of SDS on 1 June 2013, until his appointment as 
non-executive director on 1 August 2014. 
 
Remuneration of co-opted board members for the year to 31 March 2016 was as follows:- 

   
2015-16 

 
 

 
2014-15 

  
Salary 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded)  

Salary 
(banded) 

Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
           
C Pollock (appointed 01/07/14)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
H Sasan (appointed 01/07/14)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 

 
The total emoluments of the Chair, non-executive directors, co-opted board members and advisers for the year to 31 March 2016 were 
£92,846 (2015: £81,509) and include £nil (2015: £nil) in respect of compensation payments for loss office. 
 
Executive remuneration for the year to 31 March 2016 was as follows:- 

 2015-16  2014-15 

 
Salary 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

 
Salary  

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
          
D Yeates (Chief Executive) 125 - 130 6.2 60 - 65 195 - 200  140 - 145 6.2 50 - 55 200 - 205 
K Campbell 85 - 90 2.5 40 - 45 130 - 135  75 - 80 - 30 - 35 110 - 115 
A Livingstone  95 - 100 5.0 35 - 40 135 - 140  90 - 95 5.0 30 - 35 130 - 135 
J McCormick (retired 06/05/16) 100 - 105 5.0 40 - 45 145 - 150  95 - 100 5.0 30 - 35 135 - 140 
N Prentice (appointed 01/01/16) 30 - 35 6.9 - 35 - 40  - - - - 

 
The table above excludes fees paid to a provider of specialist interim resource to fulfil the role of Senior Director of Service 
Development and Delivery.  Prior to N Prentice’s employment in this role on 1 January 2016, SDS paid the provider £124,500 for 
services (2015: £72,380), and £17,300 in fees (2015: £11,250), with irrecoverable VAT of £28,360 (2015:  £16,726). 
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Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid director in their organisation 
and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.  The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Skills 
Development Scotland for the year to 31 March 2016 was £130,000 to £135,000 (2015: £145,000 to £150,000).  This was 4.0 times 
(2015: 4.5 times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £32,817 (2014: £32,480). 
 
The definition of total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay (although Skills Development Scotland 
did not pay any of the latter in 2015-16), benefits-in-kind, severance payments as well as service fees to third parties.  It does not 
include the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 
 
Executive pension benefits for the year to 31 March 2016 were as follows:- 
   

 

Accrued 
Pension at 
age 60 as at 
31 March 16 

Increase in 
Accrued Pension 
net of inflation at 

age 60 

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value  

At 
31 March 2016 

At 
31 March 2015 

Real increase in 
CETV 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
      
D Yeates 20 - 25 2.5 - 5.0 238 198 40 
K Campbell 5 - 10 0.0 - 2.5 94 70 24 
A Livingstone 20 - 25 0.0 - 2.5 285 254 31 
J McCormick 10 - 15 0.0 - 2.5 182 148 34 
N Prentice - - - - - 

  
The accrued pension is inclusive of the lump sum payment that the member may elect to draw from their accrued pension entitlement.  
Members may elect to take a maximum of 25% of their accrued pension as a lump sum payment.  This will subsequently reduce their 
future pension entitlement. 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
16 September 2016 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' AND ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN 
RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The directors and accountable officer are responsible for preparing the annual report and the group and parent financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.  As required by 
the Accounts Direction applicable for the year issued by the Scottish Ministers they are required to prepare the group financial 
statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company 
financial statements on the same basis. 

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing each of the group 
and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Accounts Direction applicable 

to the year issued by the Scottish Ministers; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent 

company will continue in business.  
 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure 
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and the Accounts Direction applicable to the year issued by the 
Scottish Ministers.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the 
group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's 
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT BY THE ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER  
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of governance that supports the achievement of my 
organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, set by Scottish Ministers, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. 
 
As the Accountable Officer for Skills Development Scotland (SDS) I am responsible for accounting for activities and I am required to: 

• sign a Governance Statement regarding SDS’s system of internal control and management of resources for inclusion in the 
annual report and accounts; and 

• obtain assurances from SDS’s Directors on the maintenance and review of our internal control systems with particular 
reference to risk management, effectiveness of operations, economical and efficient use of resources, compliance with 
applicable policies, procedures, laws and regulations, safeguards against losses including those arising from fraud, irregularity 
or corruption and the integrity and reliability of information and data.  

 
The Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) is issued by the Scottish Ministers to provide guidance to the Scottish Government and 
other relevant bodies on the proper handling and reporting of public funds. It sets out the relevant statutory, parliamentary and 
administrative requirements, emphasises the need for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, and promotes good practice and high 
standards of propriety. 
 
Governance Framework of Skills Development Scotland   
 
Skills Development Scotland has a Board in place to oversee our implementation of government policy. Amongst other things, the 
Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction of SDS within the policy, planning and resources framework determined by 
Scottish Ministers; for ensuring that the highest standards of governance are complied with; and that a prudent and effective 
framework of controls is in place to enable risks to be assessed and managed.  
 
The Board meets approximately every six weeks and is supported by five committees: the Audit and Risk Committee (quarterly 
meetings), the Finance and Operational Performance Committee (quarterly meetings), the Remuneration and Human Resources 
Committee (bi annual meetings), the Service Development Committee (six-weekly meetings) and the Nominations Committee (ad hoc 
meetings).  In addition, a Joint Skills Committee – SDS and the Scottish Funding Council – meet quarterly.    
 
In June 2015 Internal Audit reported to the Audit and Risk Committee that SDS has a framework of controls in place that provides 
reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of corporate objectives and the management of key risks and 
that proper arrangements are in place, in the areas they reviewed, to promote value for money, deliver best value and secure regularity 
and propriety in the administration and operation of the organisation. In particular Internal Audit reported that SDS has well designed 
system, policies and guidance in place for supporting effective risk management and that SDS maintains a comprehensive and effective 
information governance framework.  
 
Skills Development Scotland’s System of Internal Control 
 
SDS’s system of internal controls is in line with guidance from Scottish Ministers provided in the Scottish Public Finance Manual and 
has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. It is 
designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of SDS’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the nature and extent of 
those risks and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. In line with any system of internal control it is designed to 
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our policies, aims and objectives and provides reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.  
 
Internal Audit undertakes a review of SDS’s internal controls at least annually which cover all key controls including financial, 
operational and compliance controls.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
In 2015-16 our Internal Audit service was provided by Scott-Moncrieff, who operates in accordance with the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  
 
Their 2015-16 Internal Audit Plan, which was endorsed by our Audit and Risk Committee, was informed by an analysis of the risk to 
which we are exposed and was made up of a programme of ten reviews targeted at our key risk areas.  
 
At each quarterly Audit and Risk Committee meeting the Head of Internal Audit provided a report on their Internal Audit activity and 
the Director of Finance and Audit reported on progress with Internal Audit recommendations.  None of the 8 reviews carried out by 
Internal Audit in 2015-16 identified any major concerns 
. 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT BY THE ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER (CONT’D) 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report is presented to the June meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee. It includes an independent and 
objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of SDS’s systems of internal control and governance and any recommendations 
for improvements.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit has direct unimpeded access throughout the year to the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Chief 
Executive and the Finance and Audit Director. 
 
Internal Financial Controls 
 
Our system of internal financial controls are based on a framework of financial regulations; monitoring committees; delegation and 
accountability for officers; administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and regular financial management information 
review.  
 
In particular, our financial controls include:  

• Financial systems which include:  
o comprehensive budgeting systems; 
o regular reviews by members of the Executive Leadership Group of Revenue Budgetary Control Reports which 

identify income and expenditure to date and compare projected outturn with approved budgets; appropriate 
committees also consider these reports; 

o measuring financial and other performance against targets; and  
o clearly defined control guidelines.  

• HR and Payroll system controls to ensure staff remuneration and reimbursement payments are made correctly and on time. 
• Procurement system controls to ensure orders for goods and services are properly authorised and creditor system controls to 

ensure payments made to suppliers are correct. 
• Income and debtors controls to ensure they are correctly identified, collected and accounted for. 
• Controls over the operation of computer systems and administrative procedures to ensure secure systems are developed to 

meet business and accounting needs. 
• Counter-fraud controls including the Whistle Blowing Policy which details how employees as well as agency workers or 

contractors can voice concerns in relation to suspected fraud, theft or corruption and the Fraud Policy and Fraud Response 
Plan which details how we minimises opportunities for fraud – internal and external – and arrangements for reporting and 
investigating any suspected or alleged fraud.  

 
Risk Management Arrangements 
 
Our Risk Management Framework is designed to meet guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.  Its key components are: 

• a Risk Management Strategy which sets out how we will manage our risks to effectively support the delivery of our strategic 
and operational objectives;   

• a Risk Management Policy which sets out the SDS Risk Appetite and how risks should be identified and controlled.  The 
Policy is available to all staff on the Skills Development Scotland intranet; 

• a Risk Information Management System which is used to record, monitor and report on risk on a consistent basis across SDS; 
• corporate, directorate, business area and Project/Programme Risk Registers which follow the guidance of HM Treasury’s 

Orange Book on Risk Management. The Corporate Risk Register records those risks that impact on SDS as a whole and are 
likely to affect our ability to achieve our strategic goals and objectives. The Risk Register is reviewed by the Executive 
Leadership Group and on a quarterly basis it is reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee which includes consideration of 
progress on agreed actions to manage the risks. The other Risk Registers identify and document significant risks at directorate 
and service level, and outline the key reasons for the current risk exposure and plans in place to achieve optimum risk 
exposure; 

• senior management each complete six-monthly Risk Assurance Statements and an Annual Internal Control Statement to 
assure the Accountable Officer that internal controls, including risk management arrangements, within their directorate are 
operating effectively and are being monitored on an ongoing basis; 

• each identified risk, both at a corporate and local level, has a Risk Owner responsible for monitoring the risk and ensuring 
that any identified mitigating actions are implemented; 

• the Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of SDS’s risk management approach and receives 
from the Director of Finance and Audit a Risk Management Reports on a quarterly basis.  The Board also receives regular 
updates on internal control. from the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee; 

• directorates are responsible for ensuring early and full reporting of critical business risks. Specialist functions (business 
continuity, health and safety and information security) are in place to manage specific types of risk and these provide the 
Board and management with assurance in these areas; 

• risk assessment is also a key component of SDS’s project planning and appraisal process, via project initiation documents and 
project briefs; and 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT BY THE ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER (CONT’D) 
 

• awareness and training sessions are held as required and a risk management element is included in the SDS Induction 
Programme for new members of staff, Project Management Training and there is a separate section on Risk on the SDS 
intranet. 
 

The management of risk is the responsibility of all managers and staff throughout SDS and they have a responsibility to be risk aware 
at all times. All employees have a personal responsibility to: 

• be aware of and comply with policies and procedures; 
• be aware of risks at all times and take reasonable action to identify, eliminate where possible, or control them; 
• notify line managers of risks they have identified which cannot be adequately managed; and 
• participate in risk management education and training. 

 
Details of significant risk-related matters during the year  
 
There have been no significant risk issues that have required additional action or escalation out with our normal risk management 
process as described above.  
 
Significant lapses of data security  
 
There have been no significant lapses of data security.  
 
Conclusion 
 
Having reviewed the above, it is my opinion that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of Skills 
Development Scotland’s governance arrangements, internal control and management of resources during the year ended 31 March 
2016.   
 
My opinion is informed by: 

• the views of the Audit and Risk Committee on assurance arrangements; 
• the opinion of Internal Audit on the quality of the systems of governance, management and risk control; 
• assurances from senior management provided by Risk Assurance Statements and Annual Internal Control Statements, in line 

with SPFM guidance; 
• feedback from the business on our use of resources, responses to risk and the extent to which in-year budgets and other 

targets have been met; and 
• comments made by the external auditor in its management letters and other reports. 
  

 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer 
 
16 September 2016 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    23 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SKILLS 
DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND 
AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT  
We have audited the financial statements of The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited and its group for the year ended 31 March 
2016 under The Companies Act 2006 (Scottish public sector companies to be audited by the Auditor General for Scotland) Order 
2008.  The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position - Group, the Statement of Financial Position - Company, 
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers’ Equity and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the 
2015/16 Government Financial Reporting Manual (the 2015/16 FReM). 
 
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) 
Act 2000 and for no other purpose.  In accordance with paragraph 125 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General 
for Scotland, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 
 
Respective responsibilities of directors, accountable officer and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' and Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the directors and Accountable 
Officer are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and are 
also responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as required by the 
Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland. Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and 
income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company and its group and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accountable Officer; 
and the overall presentation of the financial statements.  It also involves obtaining evidence about the regularity of expenditure and 
income.  In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statements to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of 
any apparent material misstatements, irregularities, or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company and its group as at 31 March 2016 and of the group's 

deficit for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by 

the 2015/16 FReM; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and directions made by the Scottish 

Ministers 
 

Opinion on regularity 
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied in accordance 
with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion: 

• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 

and directions made by the Scottish Ministers; and 

• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SKILLS 
DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND 
AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT (CONT’D) 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting 

records; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; or 

• the Governance Statement does not comply with guidance from the Scottish Ministers. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.  
 
 
 

 

Andrew Shaw, (for and on behalf of KPMG LLP) 
 
191 West George Street 
 
Glasgow 
 
G2 2LJ  
 
23  September 2016 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GROUP 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016 
 
         
      Group  Group 
      2016  2015 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
ASSETS         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Intangible assets    4  313  428 
      313  428 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Trade and other receivables    5  14,730  18,379 
Cash and cash equivalents      15,436  11,501 
      30,166  29,880 
         
TOTAL ASSETS      30,479  30,308 
         
EQUITY         
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

        

Retained losses    6  (41,499)  (75,087) 
         
TOTAL EQUITY      (41,499)  (75,087) 
         
LIABILITIES         
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Retirement benefit obligations    7  61,211  94,126 
      61,211  94,126 
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Trade and other payables    8  9,652  10,118 
Current income tax liabilities    9  21  20 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges    10  1,094  1,131 
      10,767  11,269 
         
TOTAL LIABILITIES      71,978  105,395 
         
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      30,479  30,308 
         
The notes on pages 30 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The financial statements on pages 25 to 49 were approved by the board of directors on 16 September 2016 and were signed on its 
behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - COMPANY 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016 
 
         
      Company  Company 
      2016  2015 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
ASSETS         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Intangible assets    4  313  428 
      313  428 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Trade and other receivables    5  14,749  18,395 
Cash and cash equivalents      9,840  5,933 
      24,589  24,328 
         
TOTAL ASSETS      24,902  24,756 
         
EQUITY         
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

        

Retained losses    6  (47,073)  (80,636) 
         
TOTAL EQUITY      (47,073)  (80,636) 
         
LIABILITIES         
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Retirement benefit obligations    7  61,211  94,126 
      61,211  94,126 
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Trade and other payables    8  9,649  10,115 
Current income tax liabilities    9  21  20 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges    10  1,094  1,131 
      10,764  11,266 
         
TOTAL LIABILITIES      71,975  105,392 
         
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      24,902  24,756 
         
The notes on pages 30 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The financial statements on pages 25 to 49 were approved by the board of directors on 16 September 2016 and were signed on its 
behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
 
         
         
      2016  2015 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
         
         
Revenue    12  221,509  208,646 
         
Cost of sales      (12,500)  (12,339) 
         
Gross surplus      209,009  196,307 
         
Operating expenditure    13    (177,113)  (170,635) 
         
Administrative expenses    13  (33,885)  (29,877) 
         
Operating deficit      (1,989)  (4,205) 
         
Finance cost    15  (3,052)  (1,561) 
         
Finance income    15  134  122 
         
Deficit on ordinary activities before tax      (4,907)  (5,644) 
         
Income tax expense    9  (21)  (20) 
         
Deficit on ordinary activities after tax      (4,928)  (5,664) 
         
Other comprehensive expense         
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:         
         
Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in retirement benefit scheme   7  38,516  (54,447) 
         
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year     38,516  (54,447) 
         
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year   33,588  (60,111) 
         
All of the above results are derived from continuing operations and are due to the equity holders of the company. 
 
The notes on pages 30 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company 
statement of income. 
 
The total comprehensive income for the parent company for the year is £33.6 million (2015: expense of £60.1 million) and is 
influenced by IAS 19 pension adjustments.  Removing the effects of actuarial activities the operating income is £0.7 million (2015: 
expense of £0.5 million). 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
 
       
       
     Group Company 
     £’000 £’000 
       
Balance at 1 April 2014      (14,976) (20,501) 
Total comprehensive expense for the year     (60,111) (60,135) 
       
Balance at 31 March 2015     (75,087) (80,636) 
       
Balance at 1 April 2015     (75,087) (80,636) 
Total comprehensive income for the year     33,588 33,563 
       
Balance at 31 March 2016     (41,499) (47,073) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
 
     
 Notes 2016  2015 
  £’000  £’000 
     
Cash flows from operating activities     
Cash receipts: Grant-in-Aid  207,837  196,145 
Cash receipts: Customers  12,499  12,130 
Total cash received  220,336  208,275 
     
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (216,045)  (213,123) 
     
Cash generated from operations  4,291  (4,848) 
Interest received 15 134  122 
Income tax paid  (20)  (27) 
     
Net cash generated from operating activities  4,405  (4,753) 
     
Cash flows from investing activities     
Development of intangible assets 4 (470)  (373) 
     
Net cash generated from investing activities  (470)  (373) 
     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   3,935  (5,126) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  11,501  16,627 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  15,436  11,501 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Note 1 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. 

 
(a) Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are prepared in a form determined by the Scottish Ministers in accordance with the Management Statement 
between the Company and the Scottish Ministers.   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2015-16 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued 
by HM Treasury, International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS) and IFRIC Interpretations.  
The FReM requires that the group should comply with the Companies Act, but, as a non-departmental public body, also follow the 
principles in the FReM (for example, in preparing a remuneration report) where these go beyond the Companies Act.   

The FReM states that non-departmental public bodies should account for grant-in-aid as a movement in reserves rather than income.  
However, the group has concluded that under the Companies Act it is appropriate to continue to account for grant-in-aid as income, 
on the basis that grant-in-aid received by the group is required in order to carry out a function which its owners have asked it to 
perform.  On that basis, the group considers grant-in-aid to be an exchange transaction and, as such, requires to be accounted for in 
the income statement.   

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, 
are disclosed in Note 2. 

Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which has been judged to be the most appropriate to the 
particular circumstances of the group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.   

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the continued support of the Scottish 
Government.  Grant-in-aid for 2016-17 is £176.1 million and has already been included in the Scottish Government’s estimates for 
that year, which have been approved by Parliament, and there is no reason to believe that the Scottish Government’s full sponsorship 
and future Parliamentary approval will not be forthcoming.   

(b) Basis of Consolidation  
Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date 
that control ceases.    

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses 
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the group. 

(c) Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. 
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, 
has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions. 

(d) Intangible assets 

Recognition 

Intangible assets are recognised where the costs can be measured reliably and there is a clear future economic benefit attributable from 
the asset that will flow through to the group. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1 (cont’d) 
Intangible assets are internally generated assets without physical substance.  All intangible assets recognised have finite useful lives, and 
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.  Cost is defined as the direct labour and other costs directly attributable to the 
development of the intangible asset. 
Websites that deliver services are assumed to be website developments that provide a means of delivering specific services to 
customers in line with the company’s business objectives. 
Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated over the life of the asset. Amortisation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the intangible assets from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely 
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The expected useful lives for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows: 

• Websites that deliver services  - over 3 years 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate. 

Impairment 
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date and any impairment losses are recognised in the income 
statement.   

(e) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets 

Classification 

The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through income statement, loans and receivables, and 
available for sale.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.  Management determines the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 

a) Financial assets at fair value through the income statement 

Financial assets at fair value through the income statement comprise derivatives. Assets in this category are classified as current 
assets.  The group does not trade in derivatives and does not apply hedge accounting. 

b) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market.  They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the year end, which are classified as 
non-current assets.  Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash at bank and in hand in the statement of 
financial position. 

c) Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other 
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of 
the year end. 

Recognition and measurement  

Financial assets are recognised when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial 
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have been transferred and the group has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.  

a) Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit 

Financial assets carried at fair value are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income 
statement.  Financial assets carried at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value.  Gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair value are presented in the income statement. 

b) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment.  A provision for impairment of loans and receivables is established when there is objective 
evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.  Significant 
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or  
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delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the loan and receivable is impaired.  The 
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.   

When a loan or receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited in the income statement. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

The group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair value through surplus or deficit, and other financial 
liabilities.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilities were issued.  Management determines the 
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value  

Financial liabilities at fair value comprise derivatives. Liabilities in this category are classified as current liabilities.  The group does 
not trade in derivatives and does not apply hedge accounting. 

b) Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet 
date.  These are classified as non-current liabilities.  The group’s other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables in the 
balance sheet. 

Recognition and measurement  

Financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  A financial 
liability is removed from the balance sheet when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value  

Financial liabilities carried at fair value are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income 
statement.  Financial liabilities carried at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value.  Gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair value are presented in the income statement. 

b) Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

Additional information is provided in Note 19. 

(f) Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised at cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established 
when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. 
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the value of estimated future cash flows.  The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the 
income statement within ‘administrative expenses’.  

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement. 

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on 
the balance sheet. 

(h) Trade Payables 

Trade payables are recognised at cost. 
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(i) Current and Deferred Income Tax 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in reserves.  In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the 
country where the group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.  It establishes provisions where appropriate on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred tax 

In accordance with IAS 12 Income tax, full provision is made for tax assets and liabilities arising from timing differences between 
recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their recognition in the tax computation. 

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which timing differences are expected to 
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax is 
measured on a non discounted basis. 

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.  However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither 
accounting, nor taxable surplus or deficit.  Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.  Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.  Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
surpluses will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the group are outside the scope of Value Added Tax (VAT) and, in general, output tax does not apply and 
input tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 
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(j) Employee benefits 

(a) Pension Obligations 

Employees of the company are members of one of two pension schemes, highlighted below. Both schemes are defined benefit pension 
schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, which are contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension Fund: 

• Strathclyde Pension Fund 

• Highland Council Pension Fund 

The Schemes are accounted for on a defined benefit basis under IAS 19 Employee Benefits.  Assets and liabilities of the schemes are held 
separately from those of the group.  The schemes’ assets are measured using market values and the schemes’ liabilities are measured 
using a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and 
currency to the liability.  Contributions to these schemes are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working 
lives with the group.  The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the Age Attained 
Method.  The actuaries also review the progress of the schemes in each of the intervening years.  Variations from regular cost are 
spread over the expected average remaining working lifetime of members of the schemes after making allowances for future 
withdrawals.   

The expected cost of providing staff pensions to employees contributing to the schemes is recognised in the income statement on a 
systematic basis over the expected average remaining lives of members of the funds in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits and 
recognises retirement benefits as the benefits are earned and not when they are due to be paid.  The income statement also includes the 
net impact of returns on the schemes’ assets and interest on the schemes’ liabilities, which is disclosed as other finance income.  A 
pension scheme asset is recognised on the balance sheet only to the extent the surplus may be recovered by reduced further 
contributions or to the extent that the trustees have agreed a refund from the scheme at the balance sheet date.  A pension scheme 
liability is recognised to the extent that the group has a legal or constructive obligation to settle the liability. Actuarial gains and losses 
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income and expenditure, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the 
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period. 

(b) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an 
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits when it is 
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after year end are discounted to their present value. 

(k) Provisions 

The group recognises provisions when: the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable 
that an outflow of resource will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.  Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses.   
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole.   

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations 
may be small.  Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using 
the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury. 

(l) Dilapidations 

Provision for the costs of dilapidations on the expiry of premises leases, which are of uncertain timing or amount at the balance sheet 
date, are provided on the basis of the best estimate using independent professional assessments.  

  



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    35 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1 (cont’d) 

(m) Revenue 

a) Grant-in-aid 
Grant-in-aid from the Scottish Government is recognised on the basis of cash received during the year.  This treatment is defined by 
the funding agreement with the Scottish Government, which does not allow unused funding to be carried forward into future financial 
years.   

b) Sales of services 

The group sells careers and learning provision services and IT services to other public sector organisations. These services are provided 
on a time and material basis. Contract terms are generally less than one year. 
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised on a cost recovery basis.  For time contracts, the stage of completion is 
measured on the basis of labour hours delivered. For material contracts, the stage of completion is measured on the basis of direct 
expenses incurred. 

If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion, estimates are 
revised. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in income in the period in 
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management. 

Sales of services are recognised as income in the period to which they relate.   

Revenue is stated net of VAT where applicable. 

c) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis. 

d) Deferred capital grants 

Funding from the Scottish Government used to fund the purchase of capital assets is deferred in the balance sheet, split between 
amounts due within one year and amounts due in more than one year, and released to the income statement by equal instalments over 
the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the depreciation policy. 

(n) Cost of Sales 

Cost of sales represents the expenditure incurred in providing outsourced IT services and in providing specific education and lifelong 
learning services as defined in the group’s objectives as set by the Scottish Ministers.  These are the costs of generating invoiced 
income.  Cost of sales are reported in the period to which they relate and are stated net of recoverable VAT.   

(o) Operating Expenditure 

Operating expenditure represents the costs of national training programmes and the related staff costs of administering these 
programmes.  Operating expenditure is reported in the period to which it relates and is stated net of recoverable VAT. 

(p) Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses are the costs of running the group, rather than the provision of services.  These costs include central support 
functions, governance, administration costs and the related staff costs.  Administrative expenses are reported in the period to which 
they relate and are stated net of recoverable VAT. 

(q) Leases 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.  Leasehold improvements are expensed in the year and are not capitalised. 

The group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group has substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the 
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental 
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the 
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for 
each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the 
asset and the lease term. 
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(r) Newly Adopted IFRS 

In these financial statements, there are no adopted IFRSs which are effective for the first time which have had a material effect on the 
financial statements therefore there has been no restatement of comparatives. 

(s) Adopted IFRS not yet applied 
The following Adopted IFRSs have been issued but have not been applied in these financial statements.  Their adoption is not 
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated:  

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  
• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers  
• Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation – Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 

 
Note 2 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below. 
 
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in 
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations. 
 
The group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine 
the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the group considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency 
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.  Additional information is disclosed in 
Note 7. 
 
Note 3 
 
SEGMENTAL REPORTING 
 
Group 
Management has considered the operating segment of the group based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive and the Board 
that are used to make strategic decisions.  Based on this information used internally, management believe the group has one operating 
segment. 
 
All income and expenditure is attributable to the principal activity of the group and relates to the provision of National Training 
Programmes, careers and learning provision services.  The Chief Executive and the Board monitor expenditure by strategic theme.  
Revenue, Cost of Sales and finance income and expenditure are not monitored by strategic theme.  An analysis of expenditure by 
strategic theme is given in Note 13. 
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS – GROUP AND COMPANY 
         
        Websites 
        £’000 
         
Cost:         
At 1 April 2014        2,768 
Additions        373 
         
At 31 March 2015        3,141 
         
At 1 April 2015        3,141 
Additions        470 
         
At 31 March 2016        3,611 
         
Amortisation         
At 1 April 2014        2,324 
Provided during the year        389 
         
At 31 March 2015        2,713 
         
At 1 April 2015        2,713 

Provided during the year        585 

         
At 31 March 2016        3,298 
         
Net Book Value         
         
At 31 March 2016        313 
         
At 31 March 2015        428 
         
At 31 March 2014        444 
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2016  2015  2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Trade receivables 5,181  3,721  5,181  3,721 
Provision for doubtful debts -  (13)  -  (13) 
 5,181  3,708  5,181  3,708 
Other receivables 29  85  48  101 
Accrued income 3,919  4,718  3,919  4,718 
Prepayments  5,601  9,868  5,601  9,868 
 14,730  18,379  14,749  18,395 
 
Included within Trade and Other Receivables are balances due from other public sector organisations as follows:  
 
 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2016  2015  2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Central government bodies 9,026  8,147  9,026  8,147 
Local authorities 484  628  484  628 
Public corporations 2  -  2  - 
Bodies external to government 5,218  9,604  5,237  9,620 
 14,730  18,379  14,749  18,395 
 
Trade receivables that are less than three months past their due date are not considered impaired.  As at 31 March 2016 the group and 
company had trade receivables with a carrying value of £220,000 (2015: £1,743,000) that were past their due date but not impaired.  
The ageing of trade receivables which are past their due date but not impaired is as follows: 
 
GROUP AND COMPANY    
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Up to 3 months past due 204  1,742 
3 to 6 months past due 6  - 
Over six months past due 10  1 
 220  1,743 
 
The trade receivables assessed as past due but not impaired primarily relate to balances due from public sector organisations and there 
is no history of default from these customers recently. 
 
All receivables are denominated in GB pounds. 
 
The carrying amount of short term receivables approximates their fair value. 
 
The effective interest rate on non-current receivables is nil. 
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Note 6 
 
RETAINED EARNINGS 
            
     Group  Group  Company  Company 
     2016  2015  2016  2015 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
            
At 1 April 2015     (75,087)  (14,976)  (80,636)  (20,501) 
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year     33,588  (60,111)  33,563  (60,135) 
At 31 March 2016     (41,499)  (75,087)  (47,073)  (80,636) 
 
Note 7 
 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 
 
The company participated in the following Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) in the year to 31 March 2016 
 
- Strathclyde Pension Fund 
- Highland Council Pension Fund 
 
The Strathclyde Pension Fund is administered by Glasgow City Council and is managed by Strathclyde Pension Fund Office.  The 
Highland Council Pension Fund is administered by The Highland Council and is managed by the Highland Council Pension 
Committee.  Both funds are administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 and 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions and Savings) (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 
  
Both schemes are defined benefit schemes and provide benefits on a career average revalued earnings basis.  Contributions during the 
year totalled £11.2 million (2015: £7.8 million), consisting of £10.9 million (2015: £7.6 million), inclusive of deficit repayments totalling 
£3.0 million (2015: £nil), to the Strathclyde Pension Fund and £0.3 million (2015: £0.2 million), inclusive of deficit repayments 
totalling £0.1 million (2015:£nil) to the Highland Council Pension Fund.  Included within trade and other payables (note 8) are 
outstanding contributions of £nil (2015: £nil) due to the Strathclyde Pension Fund and £nil (2015: £nil) due to the Highland Council 
Pension Fund at 31 March 2016. In 2016-17 total contributions to LGPS are expected to be £8.3 million. 
  
Actuarial valuations for both schemes are prepared, with the last LGPS valuation of both schemes being to 31 March 2014. Details of 
these valuations can be obtained from published reports. 
 
The disclosures below have been prepared on a consolidated basis for the schemes in which the company and group participate.  
Comparatives have been provided where these are available. 
 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (313,198)  (331,220) 
Fair value of plan assets 252,814  237,905 
 (60,384)  (93,315) 
Present value of unfunded obligations (827)  (811) 
    
Net liability (61,211)  (94,126) 
 
 
  



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    40 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 7 (cont’d) 
 
Movement in present value of defined benefit and unfunded obligations 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Opening defined benefit obligation  332,031  234,824 
Current service cost 13,821  11,429 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 10,803  10,295 
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (40,076)  77,320 
Contributions by plan participants 2,740  2,501 
Benefits paid (5,294)  (4,338) 
    
At 31 March 314,025  332,031 
 
Movement in fair value of plan assets 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Opening fair value of plan assets  237,905  200,283 
Interest income on plan assets 7,751  8,734 
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest  (1,560)  22,873 
Contributions by employer 11,233  7,817 
Contributions by plan participants 2,740  2,501 
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 39  35 
Benefits paid (5,294)  (4,338) 
    
At 31 March 252,814  237,905 
  
Expense recognised in the statement of income  
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Current service cost 13,821  11,429 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 10,803  10,295 
Interest income on plan assets (7,751)  (8,734) 
    
Total 16,873  12,990 
 
The net expense is recognised in the following line items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income: 
 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Operating expenditure 11,378  9,764 
Administrative expenses  2,443  1,665 
Finance cost 3,052  1,561 
    
 16,873  12,990 
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Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest (1,560)  22,873 
Actuarial loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions -  (10,193) 
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions 38,248  (47,029) 
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from other experience adjustments 1,828  (20,098) 
    
Total remeasurement recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income  38,516  (54,447) 
 
The fair value of the plan assets was as follows: 
 31 March 2016  31 March 2015 
 

Quoted 
in active 

market 

 Not 
quoted 

in active 
market 

 

Total 
value 

 
Quoted 

in active 
market  

Not 
quoted 

in active 
market  

Total 
value 

 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
            
Equity securities 93,155  189  93,344  88,454  169  88,623 
Debt securities 2,383  -  2,383  2,577  1  2,578 
Private equity -  23,819  23,819  -  22,059  22,059 
Real estate 1,473  25,708  27,181  -  21,780  21,780 
Investment funds and unit trusts 4,672  92,597  97,269  5,462  91,640  97,102 
Derivatives 58  -  58  73  -  73 
Cash and cash equivalents 8,505  255  8,760  173  5,517  5,690 
            
 110,246  142,568  252,814  96,739  141,166  237,905 
            
 
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were applied on a consistent basis across the schemes and at the year 
end were as follows: 
 2016  2015 
 %  % 
    
Discount rate 3.5  3.2 
Future salary increases 4.2  4.3 
Price inflation (RPI) 3.2  3.3 
Future pension increases 2.2  2.4 
 
The discount rate is based on a corporate bond yield curve and reflects the maturity profile of the plan liabilities.  These liabilities are 
assessed as having a weighted average duration of between 17 years and 23 years at 31 March 2016. 
   
In valuing the liabilities arising from retirement benefit obligations at 31 March 2016, mortality assumptions have been made as 
indicated below.  If life expectancy had been changed to assume that all the members of the fund lived for one year longer, the value of 
the reported liabilities at 31 March 2016 would have increased by £9.4 million. 
 
The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date are based on standard 
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity.  The assumptions, which are consistent with 
those used for the latest formal funding valuations as at 31 March 2014, are equivalent to expecting a 65-year old to live for a number 
of years as follows: 
 

• Current pensioner aged 65:  22.1 years (male), 23.6 years (female) 
• Future retiree upon reaching 65: 24.8 years (male), 26.2 years (female) 
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History of plans. 
 
The history of the plans for the current and prior periods is as follows: 
 
 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012 
Statement of Financial Position £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Present value of scheme liabilities (313,198)  (331,220)  (234,058)  (205,884)  (170,038) 
Fair value of scheme assets 252,814  237,905  200,283  181,963  153,505 
Unfunded liabilities (827)  (811)  (766)  (747)  (665) 
          
Deficit (61,211)  (94,126)  (34,541)  (24,668)  (17,198) 
 
 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012 
Experience adjustments £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/% 
          
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities and 
as a percentage of scheme liabilities 

(1,828) 
(0%) 

 (20,098) 
(6%) 

 37 
0% 

 84 
0% 

 20,296 
12% 

          
Experience adjustment on scheme assets and 
as a percentage of scheme assets 

(1,560) 
(0%) 

 22,873 
10% 

 4,169 
2% 

 14,246 
8% 

 (29,552) 
(19%) 

          
 (3,388)  2,775  4,206  14,330  (9,256) 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
Change in assumptions at year ended 31 March 2016: 

Approximate % increase 
to Employer Liability 

 Approximate monetary 
amount (£’000) 

    
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 14%  42,606 
    
1 year increase in member life expectancy 3%  9,421 
    
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 7%  20,606 
    
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 7%  20,679 
 
Note 8 
 
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
     Group  Group  Company  Company 
     2016  2015  2016  2015 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year            
Trade payables     1,411  1,152  1,411  1,152 
Social security and other taxes     488  -  488  - 
Accruals and deferred income     7,753  8,966  7,750  8,963 
     9,652  10,118  9,649  10,115 
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Note 8 (cont’d) 
 
Included within trade and other payables are balances due to other public sector organisations as follows:  
 
 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2016  2015  2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Central government bodies 681  930  681  930 
Local authorities 644  201  644  201 
NHS bodies 1  -  1  - 
Public corporations 35  29  35  29 
Bodies external to government 8,291  8,958  8,288  8,955 
 9,652  10,118  9,649  10,115 
 
Note 9 
 
INCOME TAXATION 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
Analysis of tax charge in the period:    
    
UK Corporation Tax:    
Current tax on income for the period 21  20 
Adjustment in respect of prior periods -  - 
    
Total Current Tax 21  20 
    
Deferred Tax: -  - 
    
    
Tax on Surplus on Ordinary Activities 21  20 
    
The tax assessed for the period is the standard rate applying in the UK of 20% (2015: 21%).    
    
Factors affecting tax charge for the period:    
    
Current Tax Reconciliation    
Deficit on ordinary activities before tax (4,907)  (5,644) 
Current tax @ 20% (2015: 21%) (981)  (1,185) 
    
Effects of:    
Non taxable income and disallowable expenditure 1,002  1,205 
Tax deducted at source (-)  (-) 
    
Current tax charge 21  20 
    
Balance Sheet Note – Group and Company    
Corporation tax payable 21  20 
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Note 10 
 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES – GROUP AND COMPANY 
 
  

At  
1 Apr 2014 

  
Increase 

in year 

 Released to 
Income & 

Expenditure  

  
 

Utilised  

  
At  

31 Mar 2015 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Dilapidations 928  279  (-)  (76)  1,131 
          
 928  279  (-)  (76)  1,131 
 
  

At  
1 Apr 2015 

  
Increase in 

year 

 Released to 
Income & 

Expenditure 

  
 

Utilised  

  
At  

31 Mar 2016 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Dilapidations 1,131  76  (-)  (113)  1,094 
          
 1,131  76  (-)  (113)  1,094 
 
The dilapidation provision relates to the costs, over the period of the lease, to return leased premises to their original condition, per the 
lease agreement. 
 
Note 11 
 
LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
  Within   Between the second   After 
  one year  and fifth year  five years 
  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Leasehold Property       
31 March 2016  2,331  5,585  651 
31 March 2015  2,255  6,097  984 
       
 
The above relates to obligations in respect of leasehold property leased under operating lease agreements. 
 
 
Note 12 
 
REVENUE 
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Grant-in-Aid 207,837  196,145 
European Income 866  - 
IT Services 12,370  12,012 
Other Income 436  489 
 221,509  208,646 
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Note 13 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 2016  2015 
(a)  Operating Expenditure £’000  £’000 
    
National training programmes     

• Modern Apprenticeships  75,394  73,714 
• Employability fund  33,890  33,527 
• Scotland’s Best -  857 
• Partnership action for continuing employment 211  157 
• Employer recruitment incentive 2,394  2,583 
• Adopt an apprentice 516  352 
• Flexible training opportunities 1,800  2,410 
• Low carbon fund 190  361 
• Employer support and innovation fund 42  193 

 114,437  114,154 
Industry and Employer Engagement 6,820  7,984 
Developing Scotland’s Young Workforce  5,065  1,629 
Individual Learning Accounts Scotland 773  845 
Staff costs supporting operations  50,018  46,023 
 177,113  170,635 
 
(b)  Administrative Expenses    
    
Infrastructure, management & administration 13,119  12,616 
Information, communication & technology/information systems 11,540  10,182 
Staff costs supporting administration  9,226  7,079 
 33,885  29,877 
    
(c)  Included in the above are:    
    
Auditor’s remuneration:    

• Audit of these financial statements (i) 80  76 
• Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 2  2 
• Other services  2  2 

Amortisation 585  389 
Leasehold property rentals 2,099  2,221 
Directors’ remuneration (Note 14) 634  595 
 
 
(i)The auditor of Skills Development Scotland, appointed by the Auditor General for Scotland, is KPMG LLP.  The fees for audit 
services are payable to Audit Scotland who are responsible for meeting the appointed auditor’s fee.   
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Note 14 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE AND NUMBERS 
    
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Salaries 42,111  37,830 
Social security costs 3,354  3,022 
Other pension costs (note 7) 13,821  11,429 
Past service cost, including curtailments (note 7) -  - 
Employee Benefits 1,205  1,224 
 60,491  53,505 
Car allowances 268  256 
 60,759  53,761 
 
 
Average number of full time equivalent employees    
 2016  2015 
    
Non-executive directors and advisers 11  9 
Executive Leadership Group (Chief Executive and senior executive managers) 4  4 
Operational 1,046  1,018 
Administrative 223  164 
 1,284  1,195 
    
In the year to 31 March 2016, no employees left Skills Development Scotland under voluntary severance (2015: no employees). 
 
Directors’ Remuneration                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
Skills Development Scotland has one registered executive director in satisfaction of the requirements of The Companies Act 2006.  
The emoluments of this director amounted to £134,006 (2015: £149,547).  The employer’s pension contributions in respect of this 
director amounted to £23,664 (2015: £28,475).  Pension accrued up to 31 March 2016 for the director is £20,070 per annum (2015: 
£16,954).  There is no fixed cash benefit in this scheme.  
 
The emoluments of the non-executive directors amounted to £81,072 (2015: £74,408). 
 
The emoluments of the registered directors amounted to £215,078 (2015: £223,955). 
 
Emoluments, including employer’s pension contributions, of all directors, including senior executive managers and co-opted board 
members were as follows: 
    
 2016  2015 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Salary 558  512 
Pension 76  83 
 634  595 
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Note 15 
 
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 
   2016  2015 
  Notes £’000  £’000 
 
Finance costs: 

     

Expected return on pension scheme assets  7 7,751  8,734 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities  7 (10,803)  (10,295) 
   (3,052)  (1,561) 
      
Finance income:      
Interest income on bank deposits   134  122 
 
Note 16 
 
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 
 
The ultimate controlling party in The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited is the Scottish Ministers. 
 
Note 17 
 
RELATED PARTIES 
 
Skills Development Scotland is an executive non-departmental public body, sponsored by the Scottish Government - Education and 
Lifelong Learning Department which is regarded as a related party.  During the period, Skills Development Scotland has had various 
material transactions with the Scottish Government. 
 
Grant-in-aid recoverable from the Scottish Government during the year amounted to £207.8 million (2015: £196.1 million). 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £6,360 (2015: £1,140) to Campbell Dallas LLP, of which D Boyd is a Partner.  Total 
outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
  
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £4,368 (2015: £20,157) to STUC Training Ltd, of which G Smith was a Director.  
Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £3,000 (2015: £6,500) to Ayrshire Chamber of Commerce, of which W Mackie is a 
board member.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £797,652 (2015: £675,154) to Ayrshire College, of which W Mackie is a Regional 
Chair.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £1,200 (2015: £nil). Sales receipts from Ayrshire College amounted to £nil (2015: 
£72,887) and the balance outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £100,000 (2015: £nil) to the Scottish Funding Council, of which R Crawford and C 
Stuart are board members and of which P McKelvie was a board member.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil).  All 
transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £19,880 (2015: £1,000) to the College Development Network, of which W Mackie is a 
board member.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £6,000 (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £48,356 (2015: £54,558) to Glasgow Caledonian University, of which C Stuart is a 
board member.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £1,552,827 (2015: £3,076,579) to Scottish Enterprise, of which G Smith and W 
Mackie are Board members.  The balance due at 31 March 2016 is £nil (2015: £2,136).  Sales receipts from Scottish Enterprise 
amounted to £12,917,384 (2015: £10,052,739) and the balance outstanding at 31 March 2016 is £4,434,949 (2015: £2,880,206). All 
transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
 
 
 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    48 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 18 
 
SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS 

The principal undertakings in which the parent company’s interest at the year end is more than 20% are as follows: 
 
 Country of 

incorporation 
 

Principal activity 
Class and percentage of 

shares held 
    
Subsidiary undertakings    
 
 
Scottish UfI Limited 

 
 
Scotland 

The stimulation of demand for, and 
simplification of access to, lifelong learning for 
individuals and businesses throughout Scotland. 

 
100% of issued ordinary 
share capital 

    
 
Careers Trust Scotland Ltd 

 
Scotland 

Provision of careers guidance and information 
to the people of Scotland. 

 
No share capital 

 
The group financial statements consolidate the results of both organisations.  The year end of both organisations is 31 March. 
 
 Aggregate Results            Result for year 
 2016 2015  2016 2015 
 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
Subsidiary undertakings      
      
Scottish UfI Limited - -  - - 
      
Careers Trust Scotland Ltd 5,576 5,551  26 25 
      
 
Note 19 
 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Skills Development Scotland has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:- 
 
Liquidity risk 
Credit risk  
Market risk 
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that Skills Development Scotland will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  The 
organisation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquid funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due.  
Skills Development Scotland’s primary source of funds is the Grant in Aid provision from the Scottish Government. Skills 
Development Scotland has no debt or borrowing facility with any external party. 
 
Liquidity is managed by the use of the annual operating plan process and the monitoring of actual performance against budgets and 
forecasts. 
 
The table below details the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. 
 
 Carrying 

Amount 
Contractual  
Cash flows Within one year 

After more than 
one year 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Financial liabilities     
Trade and other payables 2,526 2,526 1,432 1,094 
 2,526 2,526 1,432 1,094 
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Note 19 (cont’d) 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Skills Development Scotland if a customer or counter party fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises from the trade receivables. 
 
Skills Development Scotland carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions are 
entered into in order to mitigate the credit risk Skills Development Scotland will have from any single counterparty.  The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Skills Development Scotland operates a debt management process including monitoring, escalation procedures and recourse to court 
action to recover monies outstanding.  Provision is made for doubtful receivables upon the age of the debt and experience of collecting 
overdue debts. Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks which are not expected to fail. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:- 

 
 2016 

Carrying Amount 
2015 

Carrying Amount 
 £’000 £’000 
Financial assets   
Trade and other receivables 9,130 8,452 
Cash and cash equivalents 15,436 11,501 
 24,566 19,953 
 
There was a £nil impairment provision in respect of financial assets. 
 
Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will affect income or the value of 
holdings in financial instruments. 
 
Currency risk 
Skills Development Scotland operates predominately in Scotland and the UK and is therefore considered not to be exposed to currency 
risks.  
 
Fair values 
The fair values, together with the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are as follows:- 

 
 2016 

Carrying Amount 
2016 

Fair Value 
2015 

Carrying Amount 
2015 

Fair Value 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
     
Trade and other receivables 9,130 9,130 8,452 8,452 
Cash and cash equivalents 15,436 15,436 11,501 11,501 
Trade and other payables (2,526) (2,526) (2,303) (2,303) 
 22,040 22,040 17,650 17,650 
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